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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

11:26 a.m.: 

EXAMINER BROOKS: We'll c a l l Case Number 12,992, 

A p p l i c a t i o n of San Juan Resources, I n c . , f o r compulsory 

p o o l i n g , San Juan County, New Mexico. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n . I'm 

appearing t h i s morning on behalf of the A p p l i c a n t , and I 

have two witnesses t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Other appearances? 

Okay, we've got some correspondence from Mr. 

Mosley, but — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I beli e v e — Mr. Mosley? This i s 

Mr. Mosley i n the back of the room. Would you l i k e t o come 

forward so you can p a r t i c i p a t e ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you want t o enter an 

appearance i n the case? 

MR. MOSLEY: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, and you — 

MR. MOSLEY: Where do you want me? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Over there a t t h a t other t a b l e 

w i l l be good. 

Would you s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

MR. MOSLEY: Bobbie Lee Mosley. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: And do you in t e n d t o t e s t i f y or 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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make a statement, or both? 

MR. MOSLEY: I inten d t o show t h a t t h i s has not 

been i n good f a i t h , t h a t he has l i e d t o me about --

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, l e t me j u s t say t h a t 

apparently you probably are going t o want t o put on some 

sworn testimony — 

MR. MOSLEY: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — so w e ' l l have you sworn. 

Would the witnesses stand t o be sworn, please? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, thank you. 

You may proceed when ready, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, our f i r s t witness i s 

Mr. J e r r y McHugh. 

JEROME P. McHUGH. JR.. 

the witness he r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, Mr. McHugh, would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s J e r r y McHugh, J r . I'm the owner of 

San Juan Resources, Inc., from Denver, Colorado. 

Q. Have you and your f a m i l y operated o i l and gas 

w e l l s i n the San Juan Basin, New Mexico? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you c u r r e n t l y do th a t ? 

A. I c u r r e n t l y operate a number of w e l l s i n the San 

Juan. 

Q. Your dad was involved back i n 1984 i n the 

Gavilan-Mancos hearings, was he not? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And you p a r t i c i p a t e d i n those hearings but were 

never c a l l e d as a witness? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you now have your own business? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you're doing business as San Juan Resources? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. As p a r t of your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s as p r e s i d e n t of 

t h i s company, do you pe r s o n a l l y assume the r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s 

f o r n e g o t i a t i n g w i t h p a r t i e s i n t r y i n g t o reach a v o l u n t a r y 

agreement so t h a t you can consolidate your acreage? 

A. I n some cases I do. Oftentimes I w i l l use 

c o n t r a c t landmen t o work w i t h me, or people who may know a 

p a r t y . But i t ' s u s u a l l y me d i r e c t l y , a t l e a s t who 

supervises i t , c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n t h i s case there was a c o n t r a c t landperson 

involved? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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Q. Are you also a c t i n g on t i t l e o pinions or search 

documents made by t i t l e experts t o give you i n f o r m a t i o n 

w i t h i n a spacing u n i t about i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . We d i d exhaustive 

t i t l e r e p o r t research i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r s e c t i o n i n San 

Juan County, and we're r e l y i n g on those r e p o r t s t o giv e us 

the i n t e r e s t s and owners t h a t we had i n the w e l l s . 

Q. When we look a t the AFE i n a moment, t h a t has 

been prepared by experts under your d i r e c t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I use a c o n t r a c t petroleum engineer out 

of Denver by the name of Jack Wanner, and he prepared the 

AFEs. 

Q. We'll t a l k about those i n a moment. I n a d d i t i o n , 

do you have t e c h n i c a l people t h a t you h i r e on a c o n t r a c t 

basis t o a i d you i n geologic and engineering components f o r 

your wells? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s Mr. Gary Johnson one of those i n d i v i d u a l s ? 

A. Yes, s i r , Mr. Johnson has worked f o r my f a m i l y 

back i n the 1980s and 1990s, I guess i t was, and he's 

t e s t i f i e d before the Commission i n the past, and we're good 

f r i e n d s , so we're -- He's stepping i n f o r Mr. Wanner also . 

Q. Have you u t i l i z e d Mr. Johnson t o a i d you i n 

assessing what your recommendation i s f o r the Commission, 

f o r the r i s k f a c t o r penalty associated w i t h the p o o l i n g 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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case.-' 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. J e r r y McHugh as an 

expert witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any objection? 

Very good, he's so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Mr. McHugh, i f y o u ' l l t u r n t o 

the e x h i b i t book, and i f y o u ' l l look behind E x h i b i t Tab 1, 

l e t ' s s t a r t w i t h the o r i e n t a t i o n of your p r o j e c t . When we 

look a t t h i s map, where i s the spacing u n i t you're 

proposing t o dedicate t o the well? 

A. The spacing u n i t i s the south h a l f of Section 18, 

3 0 North, 11 West, San Juan County. 

Q. I see on t h i s d i s p l a y there's a c o l o r code 

associated w i t h w e l l s . When we look i n the south h a l f of 

the s e c t i o n i n your proposed spacing u n i t , t h e r e are some 

other w e l l symbols i n here. I s t h i s spacing u n i t a v a i l a b l e 

f o r you having the operations of a wellbore t h a t produces 

from the Dakota and the Mesaverde? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . The red Dakota w e l l 

i n d i c a t e d on there i s the Fannie Ward w e l l . We have a code 

ZA, which means zone abandoned. I don't b e l i e v e t h a t w e l l 

has been plugged, but we've received an approved APD from 

the OCD out of Aztec. 

The other w e l l s noted i n there are e i t h e r 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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F r u i t l a n d w e l l s or abandoned P i c t u r e d C l i f f w e l l s or 

Farmington sand, so i t ' s been d r i l l e d out t h e r e i n other 

horizons. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n t h a t page and look a t E x h i b i t 

Number 2, what are we looking at here? 

A. This i s our approved APD from the OCD out of 

Santa Fe. 

Q. And f o l l o w i n g the f i r s t page of the approval 

permit, what's the next attachment? 

A. This i s our C-102 where the w e l l has been staked 

i n U n i t L e t t e r J of said Section 18. 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, does t h i s l o c a t i o n 

conform t o the requirements f o r a w e l l t o be produced i n 

the Mesaverde and/or the Dakota? 

A. Yes, s i r , I believe i t ' s my understanding i t ' s a 

standard l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Following t h a t l e t ' s t u r n t o the next page, which 

i s E x h i b i t Number 3. What does t h i s represent, Mr. McHugh? 

A. This i s our sample a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a p p l y i n g f o r 

downhole commingling on the subject w e l l . 

Q. Have you yet applied f o r and obtained approval 

from the D i v i s i o n f o r commingling? 

A. I have not ye t . 

Q. But your i n t e n t i s t o d r i l l t h i s w e l l f o r 

purposes of downhole commingling p r o d u c t i o n from both those 

STEVEN T, BRENNER, CCR 
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zones? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 4. When you take the south 

h a l f of Section 18 and subdivide i t i n t o v a r i o u s l o t s and 

components, how i s t h a t configured? 

A. Well, there's about ten d i f f e r e n t t r a c t s t h a t i n 

most cases would have contiguous mineral owners. They're 

u s u a l l y owners t h a t are a l l i n one p a r t i c u l a r t r a c t . So 

our t i t l e r e p o r t brought out t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n . I j u s t show 

the breakdown of the ten t r a c t s i n t h i s p r o r a t i o n u n i t f o r 

your i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, Mr. McHugh, have 

you s a t i s f i e d y o u r s e l f t h a t based upon t h i s t r a c t breakdown 

f o r the h a l f s e c t i o n you've had people search the p u b l i c 

records t o t r y t o f i n d the i d e n t i t y of those i n t e r e s t 

owners? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , we've spent a l o t of time and 

money determining who the i n t e r e s t owners are, and then 

checking on t h e i r addresses and various t h i n g s l i k e t h a t , 

so we've spent — 

Q. You're aware t h a t the Dakota and the Mesaverde 

are both spaced upon 32 0 acres? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , yes. 

Q. So the i n d i v i d u a l t r a c t separation here has no 

consequence t o the p a r t i e s t h a t are going t o pay f o r and 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

13_ 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the well? 

A. Yes, s i r , I'm aware of t h a t . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 5. This e x h i b i t has thr e e 

pages? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What have you t a b u l a t e d on t h i s spreadsheet? 

A. These are the leasehold owners which we have 

determined are the owners of record, v i a the county 

records, i n the Mesaverde and Dakota formations, which we 

plan t o d r i l l and attempt t o complete. 

These are from the records — I f you go across 

the spreadsheet here, we i n d i c a t e t h e i r working i n t e r e s t i n 

the w e l l , and then we i n d i c a t e i n which t r a c t number they 

are located from E x h i b i t 4, we show the lease t h a t i s t i e d 

t o the p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r e s t owner and, i f a p p l i c a b l e , an 

o v e r r i d e which i s also t i e d t o said i n t e r e s t owner. 

Q. I n t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , Mr. McHugh, you're asking 

Examiner Brooks t o pool two d i f f e r e n t c a tegories of owners: 

the unleased mineral owners — there's a group of those — 

plus the p a r t i e s t h a t are subject t o a lease t h a t haven't 

signed your j o i n t operating agreement? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , two d i f f e r e n t sets of -- two 

d i f f e r e n t types of owners. 

Q. When we look a t the leasehold ownership l i s t , can 

you take us through the l i s t , not by i n d i v i d u a l item, but 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

14 

read down and f i n d us where you have p a r t i e s t h a t have 

agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e using your j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. I t would probably be best t o back up, and the 

ones who have agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e on page 2 — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: What e x h i b i t are you l o o k i n g 

at? 

THE WITNESS: This i s E x h i b i t 5, page 2 of 3. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, under what tab? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s s t i l l under Tab Number 1. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, go ahead. 

THE WITNESS: The p a r t i e s who have agreed t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e are Conoco, Inc.; Maralex Resources; and also 

Manana Gas, Inc., has agreed t o p a r t i c i p a t e . 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) I n o b t a i n i n g the p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

of those working i n t e r e s t owners, have they agreed t o your 

form of j o i n t o perating agreement? 

A. Yes, they have agreed t o our j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement form and have forwarded us a signed AFE. 

Q. The AFE t h a t they've forwarded back t o you i s the 

same one t h a t you submitted t o Mr. Mosley and a l l other 

i n t e r e s t owners i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . I submitted, when we 

s t a r t e d the process, an AFE t o the e n t i r e group of i n t e r e s t 

owners on E x h i b i t 5, and then the leasehold owners on 

E x h i b i t 6 — or the mineral owners, excuse me, on E x h i b i t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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6, which w e ' l l get t o momentarily. 

Q. Let's t u r n now t o E x h i b i t 6. I d e n t i f y f o r me 

what you're showing on t h i s spreadsheet. 

A. This i s a l i s t of the mineral owners we've 

determined on t h e i r minerals i n Section 18, t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

f o r the e n t i r e p r o r a t i o n u n i t , and then the t r a c t s t h a t we 

b e l i e v e they're — i n which they're l o c a t e d . 

Q. I n t r y i n g t o ob t a i n a d d i t i o n a l leases or new 

leases f o r your account, have you obtained recorded leases 

f o r c e r t a i n i n t e r e s t s , and have they been recorded? 

A. Yes, the James R. Williams Estate, we leased t h a t 

from the personal r e p r e s e n t a t i v e , Eloy T r u j i l l o , and we 

obtained a one-eighth r o y a l t y lease, net proceeds language 

i n the lease. I t h i n k i t was a f i v e - y e a r lease a t $150 per 

acre. 

Q. Are those the lease terms t h a t you o f f e r e d Mr. 

Mosley and h i s group? 

A. Approximately. 

Q. Yeah, t h a t ' s where you s t a r t e d w i t h t h a t 

n e g o t i a t i o n ? 

A. That's where we — I t h i n k we s t a r t e d a t one-

e i g h t h and $75. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. We also leased a Mrs. Sarah Norwood — she has 7 6 

acres i n the p r o r a t i o n u n i t — f o r $30 an acre, one-eighth 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , net lease language, f o r f i v e years. 

We also leased the Nathan Good i n t e r e s t f o r a 

one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , $120 per acre net lease 

language, f o r f i v e years also. 

Q. Let's go back t o the l a s t e x h i b i t , E x h i b i t 5, and 

look a t the t h i r d page of t h a t e x h i b i t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f o r g o t t o ask you a question. You i n d i c a t e the 

D r i s c o l l i n t e r e s t --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — t h a t you're seeking t o have those i n t e r e s t s 

pooled a t t h i s time? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. I s there any t i t l e c o n f l i c t here t h a t the p o o l i n g 

order would allow you t o address? 

A. I'm not — 

Q. I d i d n ' t say t h a t very w e l l . 

A. I'm not sure what your question i s . 

Q. This i n t e r e s t t h a t i s designated under D r i s c o l l , 

do you have leases from other i n t e r e s t owners as t o t h i s 

i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s r i g h t . I t eippears t h a t t here's a --

t h r e e t r a c t s — t r a c t s 1, 6 and 4 — which i n d i c a t e t h a t 

Mr. D r i s c o l l had various percentages of i n t e r e s t i n those 

t r a c t s . Like I said, t h i s i s a very complicated area 
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leasewise and interest-ownerwise, and so, you know, we're 

r e l y i n g on our t i t l e r e p o r t s and i n the midst of a standup 

t i t l e o p i n i o n . So we're requesting t o f o r c e pool t h a t 

e n t i r e i n t e r e s t , should he own t h a t e n t i r e i n t e r e s t . 

Q. Your b e l i e f i s otherwise, t h a t you already have 

t h a t i n t e r e s t through a d i f f e r e n t chain of t i t l e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . Well, we -- You 

know, i t depends who your t i t l e a t t o r n e y i s and how 

aggressive you want t o do i t , but we do have other 

i n t e r e s t s i n Mr. D r i s c o l l ' s underlease, c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the E x h i b i t Tab 3, which are not 

numbered i n sequence. We're j u s t p i c k i n g up w i t h E x h i b i t 

7. Behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 2 are the a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r 

hearing, are there not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I'm not going t o ask you about these. I'm going 

t o ask you t o f l i p past those, and w e ' l l go t o Tab 3. Tab 

3 i s the n o t i c e information? 

A. (Nods) 

Q. Did you send a n o t i c e l e t t e r t o Mr. Mosley and 

the other p a r t i e s t o be pooled, and are copies of those 

r e t u r n r e c e i p t cards and c o n f i r m a t i o n of m a i l i n g s contained 

behind E x h i b i t Tab 3? 

A. Yes, s i r , they are. 

Q. And some of those were sent out of my o f f i c e and 
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some of them out of your o f f i c e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's turn past that, and let's deal first of all 

with your efforts to locate, find and obtain agreement of 

parties that were subject to leases --

A. Okay. 

Q. — and then w e ' l l t a l k about Mr. Mosley and the 

unleased mineral owners. 

Under t h i s next tab, Mr. McHugh — I'm l o o k i n g a t 

Tab 4 and I'm s t a r t i n g w i t h E x h i b i t 10. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Are these notes t h a t you have prepared and 

reduced t o a t a b u l a t i o n ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . E x h i b i t 10, item number 1 s t a r t s 

w i t h Mr. D r i s c o l l , deceased. 

Q. I don't want you t o read a l l t h i s s t u f f . 

A. Oh, okay. 

Q. T e l l us the p a r t y and t e l l us the i n - c o n c l u s i o n . 

A. Mr. D r i s c o l l was an i n t e r e s t i n g f e l l o w . He died 

i n t e s t a t e , and he apparently had a l o t of debts when he 

died . We put a landman on i t i n Dallas, where he d i d pass 

— t o t r a c k down h i s whereabouts, and she has a r e p o r t here 

of item number 12 — excuse me, E x h i b i t Number 12, l a t e r 

on. 

Anyways, w i t h i n her r e p o r t she t a l k s about how 
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she t r a c k e d him down, t r i e d t o f i n d a death c e r t i f i c a t e . 

You have t o be an h e i r t o f i n d a death c e r t i f i c a t e . She 

d i d f i n d the death c e r t i f i c a t e f o r Mr. D r i s c o l l , but they 

wouldn't give i t t o her, and found h i s c l o s e s t l i v i n g h e i r 

was Mr. McManus i n Dallas. 

When she contacted Mr. McManus and when I 

contacted Mr. McManus, she had washed h i s hands of anything 

t o do w i t h Mr. D r i s c o l l . There apparently are 30 years 

associated w i t h h i s es t a t e , and they a l l don't want t o 

i n h e r i t anything because t h e y ' l l j u s t i n h e r i t a bunch of 

debts. So i t ' s a l l w r i t t e n i n here as t o our process on 

i t . 

Q. So you chased t h a t i n t e r e s t i n a l l the l o g i c a l — 

A. Really chased t h a t p r e t t y e x h a u s t i v e l y , I 

thought, and we have an o b i t u a r y on him and l o t s of 

i n t e r e s t i n g i n f o r m a t i o n i n the f i l e s . 

Q. Let's t a l k about the next e n t r y , t h i s St. Xavier 

Church. 

A. Well, items 2 through 4 are churches. They're 

a l l s t i l l i n existence, and they a l l c a l l e d me up and a l l 

d i d n ' t know they had an i n t e r e s t . These i n t e r e s t s might 

have been owned by an i n t e r e s t owner who conveyed them t o 

the church 30 years ago and i t s t i l l i s of record . 

They a l l — I o f f e r e d t o buy them out f o r — Oh, 

I f o r g e t what I o f f e r e d them, but I e s s e n t i a l l y r e t u r n e d 
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them l e t t e r s , gave them three options: They could e i t h e r 

s e l l out t o me f o r the o f f e r I was w i l l i n g t o do on t h e i r 

small percentage, they could j o i n the w e l l , which was t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t of .79 percent times $600,000, which was our AFE 

cost, or they could go nonconsent. And most a l l of them, 

when they d i d get back t o me, they agreed t o go nonconsent 

or j u s t t o do nothing. They said they want t o keep t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t and r o l l the dice. That's what some of them s a i d . 

Q. The r e s t of your t a b u l a t i o n here analyzes your 

e f f o r t s w i t h regard t o the various groups? 

A. That's r i g h t . Number 5, I d i d get a c a l l back 

from Mr. W i l l i a m Neidringhaus's son. I tr a c k e d him down 

because the senior Neidringhaus address was almost i n the 

same neighborhood of P h i l a d e l p h i a as the j u n i o r 

Neidringhaus address. And he said he j u s t wants t o w a i t 

and we how the w e l l does before he does anything. 

Items 6 through 8 -- excuse me, 6 through — 

yeah, 6 through 7 are a commentary of which c e r t i f i e d 

l e t t e r s we received back. The f i r s t on the — We received 

green cards back, excuse me. We received green cards from 

Mr. Simpson and Mr. R u f f i n , but we've y e t t o hear from 

e i t h e r of the p a r t i e s . 

I n the other group we also received c e r t i f i e d 

l e t t e r s back from — d i d not receive — We a c t u a l l y 

received the c e r t i f i e d l e t t e r back, not the green card; we 
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received the a c t u a l l e t t e r back from a l l the people i n item 

7 . 

Q. Once t h a t happened, d i d you continue t o make 

I n t e r n e t searches and other e f f o r t s t o t r y t o l o c a t e b e t t e r 

addresses f o r those p a r t i e s ? 

A. Yes, we d i d , and we only came up w i t h one, and 

t h a t was Mr. Stanley de J. Osborne, and we sent one t o 

where h i s maid t o l d us he used t o work and t o where he 

l i v e s i n New York C i t y . And went — an I n t e r n e t search 

l o o k i n g on the z i p codes and the l a s t names, and we have 

those i n our records of the exhaustive search t h a t we d i d 

do. 

Q. As t o a l l the leasehold i n t e r e s t owners t h a t 

you're now seeking a force p o o l i n g order a g a i n s t , have you 

made your best e f f o r t t o t r y t o f i n d them and, i f so, 

ob t a i n p a r t i c i p a t i o n by them i n some fashion? 

A. Yes, s i r , I t h i n k we have. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 11. When you s t a r t e d t h i s 

process of f o r m a l l y proposing the w e l l t o a l l t h i s category 

of ownership, d i d you send them a w r i t t e n proposal and an 

AFE? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What i s represented by E x h i b i t 11? 

A. E x h i b i t 11 i s the l e t t e r we sent out t o a l l 

working i n t e r e s t owners and a l l mineral owners i n the w e l l 
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t h a t we d i d not have an agreement w i t h . This one i s a 

sample we sent t o Mr. D r i s c o l l . The Mosley group a l s o 

received the same l e t t e r . 

Q. So t h i s l e t t e r , although i t says D r i s c o l l , i s 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the same l e t t e r ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Except f o r the addressee, i t ' s i d e n t i c a l ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. When you sent out t h a t l e t t e r d i d you a t t a c h the 

next document, which i s t h i s three-page AFE? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what are the t o t a l costs of the w e l l , f o r a 

completed well? 

A. T o t a l d r i l l e d and completed cost i s $604,425. 

Q. This i s dated i n November of l a s t year. Are 

these costs s t i l l c u r r e n t , t o the best of your knowledge? 

A. P r e t t y much, t o the best of my knowledge. 

They're r i g h t i n l i n e w i t h what -•- going f o r , f o r a Dakota-

Mesaverde w e l l . 

Q. There i s no s u b s t a n t i a l change, then, i n the 

t o t a l number of d o l l a r s spent? 

A. No, s i r , no s u b s t a n t i a l change. 

Q. I s t h i s the AFE t h a t you would recommend the 

D i v i s i o n Examiner r e l y upon t o determine t h a t the proposed 

w e l l i s at a reasonable cost? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's t u r n past t h a t . E x h i b i t 12 you t a l k e d 

about a w h i l e ago. I don't want you t o read t h i s f o r us. 

What does i t represent? 

A. This represents the work t h a t landman G a i l 

Bowline out of Dallas, Texas, performed f o r me i n the 

search f o r Mr. D r i s c o l l . You know, e s s e n t i a l l y what we 

came up w i t h was the cl o s e s t l i v i n g h e i r was Mr. Steven 

McManus, and the McManuses were not i n t e r e s t e d i n pursuing 

anything f u r t h e r on Mr. D r i s c o l l • s e s t a t e . 

Q. Let's t u r n behind E x h i b i t Tab 5, and we're going 

t o s t a r t l o o k i n g a t those e x h i b i t s t h a t are numbered w i t h 

E x h i b i t 13. 

A. Okay. 

Q. This w i l l be the package of l e t t e r s and 

correspondence de a l i n g p r i n c i p a l l y w i t h Mr. Bob Mosley, 

who's here, and other members of h i s f a m i l y whom he 

represents? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. So l e t ' s s t a r t t h a t d i scussion. When you had the 

t i t l e examined f o r unleased mineral owners, does t h i s 

represent the t a b u l a t i o n , t o the best of your knowledge, of 

those i n t e r e s t owners and the percentage i n t e r e s t they 

would have i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. Let's s t a r t at the bottom, t h i s James Wil l i a m s 

Estate. What's the status of t h a t i n t e r e s t ? 

A. Mr. Eloy T r u j i l l o , who's the personal 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the estate of James R. W i l l i a m s , he 

agreed t o lease w i t h us, oh, a month and a h a l f ago, a one-

e i g h t h r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , $150 per acre f o r f i v e years. 

Q. Help us w i t h the vocabulary. There's a 

d i f f e r e n c e between you and Mr. Mosley, not only of r o y a l t y 

percentage or f r a c t i o n , but also w i t h the d i f f e r e n c e 

between a gross lease and a net lease? 

A. That's r i g h t . Mr. T r u j i l l o agreed t o lease w i t h 

us using a lease t h a t we — use i t w i t h the net proceeds 

lease language. Net proceeds --

Q. Let me ask you t h i s : For the a c t i v i t y i n t h i s 

spacing u n i t , do you have any gross leases? 

A. No, s i r , I do not. 

Q. They're a l l net leases? 

A. These are a l l net proceeds lease language, 

c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n using your business i n San Juan Basin, do you 

use a gross lease? 

A. Have not. 

Q. What's your understanding of the d i f f e r e n c e 

between a gross lease and a net lease? 

A. Well, what -- Gross-proceeds lease language 
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i n d i c a t e s i n there t h a t g a t h e r i n g / t r e a t i n g / p r o c e s s i n g 

charges w i l l not be paid by the i n t e r e s t owner or the 

r o y a l t y owner on the lease. They're used i n v a r i o u s places 

where i n t e r e s t owners want t o not have t o p i c k up those 

charges. 

Net lease language i s r e a l l y k i n d of l i k e the o l d 

t r a d i t i o n a l lease, but i t c l a r i f i e s t h a t the proceeds from 

the wellhead w i l l be netted back t o the i n t e r e s t owner 

based on what the a c t u a l charges are. 

For instance, we may s e l l our gas a t the t a i l g a t e 

of a p l a n t , but we have t o pay f r e i g h t , we have t o pay 

gat h e r i n g , we have t o pay t r e a t i n g , processing f i e l d 

charges which are loaded on us by the g a t h e r i n g company t o 

get i t t o the marketable place. So we have j u s t used the 

net proceeds lease language as a c l a r i f i c a t i o n because, as 

you know, across the Rockies there have been s u i t s where 

t h i n g s have been challenged and the o l d leases j u s t don't 

stack up. I don't want t o get i n t o a l l t h a t , but — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yes, I'm very f a m i l i a r w i t h 

t h a t , some of t h a t l i t i g a t i o n anyway. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) So t h a t turned out t o be one 

of the issues of d i f f e r e n c e between you and Mr. Mosley? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's go up the spreadsheet. there's a John Ford 

l i s t e d here. Were you ever able t o lo c a t e him? 
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A. We got a green card back on the f i r s t l e t t e r we 

sent t o him, but d i d not get one back on the n o t i c e of the 

Commission hearing. We t r i e d t o c a l l him and d i d n ' t hear 

anything back, so -- d i d n ' t hear a t h i n g from him. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the Mosley i n t e r e s t , and I ' l l r e f e r 

t o them c o l l e c t i v e l y . 

A. Okay. 

Q. Has Mr. Bob Mosley t o l d you t h a t he i s 

re p r e s e n t i n g t h a t group? 

A. Yes, he t o l d me on our f i r s t c onversation i n J u l y 

of 2002, and you know, i n those k i n d of s i t u a t i o n s our 

i n i t i a l contact was t o send everybody out a l e t t e r , cover 

l e t t e r and a lease and a d r a f t and t h i s i s our o f f e r , 

because, you know, you don't always know how f a m i l i e s are 

going t o — i f they're going t o be working t o g e t h e r or 

working a p a r t , so — But a f t e r our f i r s t c onversation he 

t o l d us he was working f o r — or he was t r y i n g t o help 

everyone get on the same page. 

Q. And so you honored t h a t request, and t h a t ' s — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. These l e t t e r s t h a t are exchanged are d i r e c t e d t o 

Mr. Mosley — 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. — or Bob Mosley. 

A. And a c t u a l l y , on t h i s -- when we d i d send 
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c e r t i f i e d , we send c e r t i f i e d t o everybody. And when we d i d 

do a new lease proposal or a new lease c l a r i f i c a t i o n we 

sent everybody the same correspondence. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 14. 

MR. MOSLEY: Can I — At any time can I say 

something here, or --

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, y o u ' l l have an 

op p o r t u n i t y t o question the witness — 

MR. MOSLEY: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — a f t e r Mr. K e l l a h i n has 

f i n i s h e d h i s questions. 

MR. MOSLEY: Okay. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may proceed. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Mr. McHugh, l e t ' s look a t 

E x h i b i t 14. You've ta b u l a t e d some of the a c t i v i t i e s w i t h 

Mr. Mosley, the Ford and the Williams i n t e r e s t s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I'm going t o pass those so we can t a l k 

s p e c i f i c a l l y , and you can give us o r a l testimony about — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — the Mosley i n t e r e s t . Let's s t a r t , then, w i t h 

E x h i b i t 15. This i s a l e t t e r over your l e t t e r h e a d dated 

June 2 5th of l a s t year, I t ' s executed by t h i s Richard 

Frazey? 
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A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Who i s he? 

A. He's a landman t h a t works f o r me on a c o n s u l t i n g 

basis, c o n t r a c t basis. 

Q. What were you asking him t o do? 

A. I asked him send out parameters described i n t h i s 

l e t t e r t o the Mosley clan of — t h i s was our i n i t i a l 

c o ntact -- o f f e r i n g them one-eighth r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , $75 

per acre f o r a f i v e - y e a r paid-up lease, and w i t h delay 

r e n t a l s f o r f o u r years of the lease. 

And so Mr. Frazey d i d t h i s , and then — 

Q. Yeah, l e t ' s look a t t h i s . The f i r s t paragraph 

i s , you propose the -- I use the f r a c t i o n s . I t ' s an 

e i g h t h - i n t e r e s t r o y a l t y ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Was i t your i n t e n t i o n t o present t o the Mosley's 

a net lease? 

A. I t was not my intention.. When Mr. Frazey sent 

out the lease form, i f you look f a r t h e r back i n t h e r e , t h i s 

i s a copy t h a t he sent t o Mrs. Mary Gwendolyn Mosley, which 

she sent back. He had sent out a one-eighth gross-proceeds 

form. 

Q. Was t h a t your i n t e n t , t o have a gross-proceeds 

lease --

A. I t was not my i n t e n t t o do t h a t , r i g h t . 
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Q. — sent out? 

A. He has on h i s computer a l i s t of leases, and he 

apparently had been working on gross-proceeds leases a t the 

time -- t h i s was back i n J u l y of l a s t year — and he sent 

t h i s lease form along. And so i t wasn't r e a l l y — and t h a t 

was my — I take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r not c a t c h i n g t h a t when 

i t went out. 

Q. The second paragraph of the l e t t e r says, I f t h i s 

i s acceptable, please sign the lease, r e t u r n i t back t o me 

and execute the check. That was the d i r e c t i o n t h a t you 

asked t h a t the Mosleys use t o accept — 

A. Right. 

Q. — t h i s proposal? 

A. Right. 

Q. I n response t o t h a t i n i t i a l proposal, what i s the 

next t h i n g t h a t happened? 

A. The next t h i n g t h a t happened i s , I got a c a l l 

from Mr. Mosley, Mr. Bob Mosley here, and he i n d i c a t e d he 

and h i s s i b l i n g s were a l l working together, and he 

i n d i c a t e d he wanted a o n e - f i f t h r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . 

Q. So you already had a d i f f e r e n c e between you about 

the r o y a l t y percent? 

A. That's r i g h t . And then he wanted $150 per acre. 

Q. Which was twice what you offered? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . And then he wanted a s h u t - i n 
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w e l l payment of $250 per lessor, per year f o r — I t h i n k i t 

was a four-year lease. You know, I agreed w i t h t h a t on him 

a t the time and sent him a new lease and a new cover 

l e t t e r . 

Q. Were you i n agreement w i t h i n c r e a s i n g the r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t t o a f i f t h as opposed t o an eighth? 

A. I was w i l l i n g t o do t h a t t o get him leased, 

r i g h t . 

Q. I t was your understanding, though, i n doing so 

t h a t you thought you were d e a l i n g w i t h a net lease? 

A. That's r i g h t , t h a t ' s r i g h t . And when I d i d send 

him back a lease, E x h i b i t 17, I -•-

Q. Well, E x h i b i t 16 was returned t o you by the 

various Mosleys? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Were they a l l done i n the same fa s h i o n where i t 

says "No Sale", "No Sale", "Void"? 

A. Yeah I t h i n k three out of the f i v e of them came 

back t h a t way. 

Q. Well, t u r n now t o E x h i b i t 17. 

A. E x h i b i t 17, I agreed t o do t h a t , but I changed 

the form from a o n e - f i f t h -- or from a one-eighth gross-

proceeds lease t o a o n e - f i f t h net-proceeds lease. 

Q. Which was your i n t e n t i o n a l l along? 

A. Which was my i n t e n t i o n a l l along. And I 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

31 

i n d i c a t e d t o Mr. Mosley when I v i s i t e d him — I was i n 

Farmington on business August 1st, and I i n d i c a t e d t o Mr. 

Mosley t h a t , you know, we j u s t can't l i v e w i t h the gross-

proceeds language at t h a t r o y a l t y r a t e . We had a 3 0-minute 

v i s i t , I t h i n k , a t your place, and we -- very c o r d i a l . 

And a t t h a t time, Mr. Mosley produced an addendum 

saying t h a t they would accept the net lease form, but they 

had t o have, then, an addendum which sai d t h a t the les s o r s 

would not bear any of the gathering, t r e a t i n g or processing 

charges. 

And I said, Well, I can't l i v e w i t h t h a t . I 

mean, t h i s i s t u r n i n g i n t o -- a o n e - f i f t h lease i s t u r n i n g 

i n t o a one-half lease, the way some of these charges are. 

So I was -- you know. And I ' l l take r e s p o n s i b i l i t y — 

Q. So you and Mr. Mosley were not able t o make an 

agreement based upon what your proposal — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . And then what I d i d do on August 

6th, E x h i b i t 18 -- Do you want me t o go along and --

Q. Yes, yeah --

A. Okay. 

Q. — please go --

A. I got back from Farmington on August 2nd or 3rd, 

so t h a t f o l l o w i n g week, on August 6th, I sent him a l e t t e r 

and I used the word c l a r i f y i n g the SJR o f f e r w i t h t he net 

lowest lease proceeds language, and here I was s t i l l 
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o f f e r i n g him the o n e - f i f t h r o y a l t y , $150 per acre, the 

delay r e n t a l s , four years, e v e r y t h i n g . 

And you know, even at the time of our v i s i t he 

s a i d he had another p a r t y who was going t o go w i t h him on 

h i s terms and everything else, so I wanted t o make sure i f 

e v e r y t h i n g was equal, maybe I ' d have a chance of g e t t i n g 

the lease at the one-eighth and the net, t h a t ' s a l l I was 

w i l l i n g t o do. Or excuse me, the o n e - f i f t h r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t and the net-lease language. 

Q. Following the August 5th l e t t e r , when was your 

next conversation or discussion w i t h Mr. Mosley? Was t h e r e 

a piece of correspondence between any more conversations 

and E x h i b i t 18? 

A. There was -- We might have had some telephone 

conversations. But I j u s t r e i t e r a t e d my p o i n t t o him, and 

I t h i n k I might have t o l d him on the telephone, Well, i f 

you've got somebody else, you know, t o go w i t h , go f o r on 

t h a t . 

Q. Well, l e t me understand, then. I f I'm l o o k i n g a t 

the August 6th l e t t e r --

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — making a comparison t o the next l e t t e r , 

E x h i b i t 19, which i s September 19 --

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — what's the d i f f e r e n c e ? 
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A. Okay, t h i s was a k i n d of a — not a f i n a l o f f e r , 

but I would agree t o use the gross proceeds lease and a 

one-eighth r o y a l t y , or use the o n e - f i f t h r o y a l t y lease and 

a net language. And so my September 15th l e t t e r gave him 

two o p t i o n s . 

Q. September 19th l e t t e r ? 

A. Excuse me, September 19th l e t t e r . Two o p t i o n s , 

and again, the explanation of our p o s i t i o n . 

Q. The next l e t t e r , E x h i b i t 20, I t h i n k i s out of 

sequence here, and there i s another copy l a t e r of t h i s same 

l e t t e r . 

A. So we ignore t h a t . 

Q. So l e t ' s ignore E x h i b i t 2 0 because i t ' s repeated 

and i t ' s out of chronology. 

So a f t e r the September 19th l e t t e r , we've given 

Mr. Mosley both a l t e r n a t i v e s . What then d i d you do? 

A. I b e l i e v e at t h a t p o i n t I had a telephone 

conversation w i t h him and I said, you know, i f he can get 

t h a t deal w i t h another company go ahead, because I can't do 

i t and, you know, i f we end up d r i l l i n g a w e l l , w e ' l l work 

w i t h t h a t company. And I even t h i n k I mentioned, w e l l , how 

about, you know, we -- I even mentioned a t t a c h i n g a gas 

balancing agreement t o the lease so t h a t i f he wanted t o 

market h i s own gas t h a t he could do t h a t , and he d i d n ' t 

want t o do t h a t . 
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So I mean, I was j u s t t r y i n g t o make a deal here, 

which I thought was p r e t t y generous i n l i g h t of other p a r t s 

of the p r o r a t i o n u n i t t h a t I've worked. 

Q. When we get t o E x h i b i t 2 2 — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — what was your purpose i n E x h i b i t 22? 

A. This was the l e t t e r t h a t went out c e r t i f i e d m a i l 

t o a l l the i n t e r e s t owners t h a t e i t h e r we cou l d n ' t f i n d or 

t h a t we couldn't make a deal w i t h on the w e l l s . So t h i s 

l e t t e r was sent t o a l l the Mosleys — and they're included 

i n t h i s m a i l i n g — t o ask them i f they wanted t o j o i n i n 

the w e l l . 

Q. And then i n December, E x h i b i t 23, you've got a — 

you received a l e t t e r from Mr. T u l l y i n Farmington on 

behalf of Mr. Mosley? 

A. Right, I got t h i s l e t t e r received i n my o f f i c e on 

December 11th, and i t was rundown of what the Mosley group 

now wanted. And I responded t o t h a t on --

Q. Well, l e t ' s see where the d i f f e r e n c e i s . 

A. Oh, okay. 

Q. They're s t i l l back on a f i f t h r o y a l t y , and they 

want i t t o be net -- they want i t t o be gross. 

A. They want i t t o be a gross lease, c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then there's a bonus of $350 per miner a l acre 

and a two-year term a t t h i s point? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

35_ 

A. Right. 

Q. And then you pay up the lease. What d i d you 

respond t o Mr. T u l l y ? Well, I guess t h a t ' s not the next 

correspondence. 

The next correspondence i s E x h i b i t 24, which i s 

Mr. T u l l y ' s l e t t e r t o me. 

A. Yeah, I responded i n — 

Q. Later on. Let's f i n i s h the sequence so t h a t the 

Examiner --

A. Okay. 

Q. -- has a l l the correspondence. So there's 

T u l l y ' s l e t t e r t o you, there's T u l l y ' s l e t t e r t o me. And 

t h a t ' s f o l l o w e d , then, by Mr. Mosley's l e t t e r t o the 

D i v i s i o n dated January 22nd. That's E x h i b i t 25. Do you 

have t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. A f t e r t h a t , then, your l e t t e r of January 

25th i s E x h i b i t 26. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. You're responding t o t h i s l a t e s t proposal by Mr. 

T u l l y , t r y i n g t o get a v o l u n t a r y agreement. How d i d you 

respond — 

A. I j u s t s a id, Well, i t looks l i k e we're going t o 

go t o the Commission, and what I want i s a o n e - s i x t h 

r o y a l t y , p a i d lease form on a net-proceeds lease, $150 per 
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acre f o r t h r e e years. 

Q. Okay. Now, E x h i b i t 27 i s the January 30th l e t t e r 

from Mr. T u l l y t o me. What's Mr. T u l l y now proposing? Has 

t h e r e been any change i n p o s i t i o n s here? 

A. Yeah, he d i d propose t h a t they have a o n e - s i x t h 

— or, excuse me, a 3/16 r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t . 

Q. So he's dropped from a f i f t h now t o 3/16? 

A. And they're s t i l l hanging on the --

Q. -- gross lease? 

A. -- gross lease t h a t w i l l not bear any p r o d u c t i o n 

costs and expenses. 

Q. Did you respond t o Mr. T u l l y ' s l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I responded on February 6 t h , and I 

agreed t o — 

Q. What was your l a s t o f f e r t o Mr. Mosley? 

A. I agreed t o come up t o $200 per acre, o n e - s i x t h 

r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t , paid-up lease form, net-proceeds lease 

and a s h u t - i n p r o v i s i o n of $50 per lease per year. 

Q. Since the February 6th correspondence, have t h e r e 

been any acceptance or f u r t h e r c o u n t e r o f f e r s by Mr. T u l l y 

or Mr. Mosley? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. So t h a t ' s s o r t of the end of the l i n e w i t h t h a t 

i n t e r e s t , i s i t not? 

A. That's r i g h t . 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Brooks, t h a t concludes my 

examination --No, I f o r g o t t o ask you about your o p e r a t i n g 

agreements. 

Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) I n your o p e r a t i n g agreement, 

what are your operating overhead charges on a monthly basis 

f o r a producing w e l l and a d r i l l i n g w e l l t h a t you've got 

Conoco and others t o accept? What are you using? 

A. Our monthly operating r a t e s f o r a producing w e l l 

are $890 per month, the d r i l l i n g overhead r a t e s are $4905 

per month. Both of these r a t e s were checked v i a COPAS and 

a survey of s i m i l a r r a t e s i n the San Juan Basin. 

Q. And t h a t ' s your recommendation t o the Examiner 

f o r overhead r a t e s t o apply i n the p o o l i n g order? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. McHugh. 

We would move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t s 1 

through E x h i b i t 28. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any o b j e c t i o n s t o the e x h i b i t s , 

Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Do you wish t o cross-examine 

t h i s gentleman? 

MR. MOSLEY: (Nods) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: You may proceed. 
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MR. MOSLEY: He was r i g h t on the — or the f i r s t 

was a gross proceeds, f i r s t lease, I've got i t r i g h t here. 

I t a l k e d t o him on the phone and I t o l d him what 

we wanted. He agreed over the phone and I t o l d him i t was 

gross proceeds. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Excuse me j u s t a minute. We 

need t o have a c e r t a i n e t i q u e t t e here, because i f I l e t you 

give your testimony now, then the question w i l l a r i s e as t o 

what do I do next? Do I l e t Mr. K e l l a h i n cross-examine you 

or so f o r t h ? So t o keep t h i s i n sequence, you can ask t h i s 

gentleman questions i f you want t o a t t h i s t ime, and then 

a f t e r the two witnesses f o r San Juan have t e s t i f i e d , then 

w e ' l l l e t you t e s t i f y , and then Mr. K e l l a h i n can ask you 

questions. Okay? 

MR. MOSLEY: Okay, I ' l l j u s t — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Yeah, you can ask t h i s 

gentleman questions, any questions you want t o ask him 

about h i s testimony. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MOSLEY: 

Q. And you came t o my house on — somewhere around 

the 1st of August; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And we t a l k e d i n my l i v i n g room about the 

lease? 
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A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. At t h a t time there was an attachment t o i t ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right, the addendum t h a t you had, or E x h i b i t A, I 

t h i n k i t was. I never got a copy because I t h i n k you kept 

i t . I looked a t i t and I j u s t s a i d , Well, I -- I j u s t 

don't see how we can do a l l these t h i n g s . I need t o t a l k 

about i t , need t o get back and — Part of the problem was, 

I was t r y i n g t o c l a r i f y i n my mind what lease we'd 

i n i t i a l l y sent out and what lease — what the whole p i c t u r e 

was, gross versus net. So there was some confusion i n my 

mind when I met w i t h you as t o what I had agreed t o over 

the telephone and whether we were using the c o r r e c t lease 

form also. 

My l e t t e r of August 6th was a c l a r i f i c a t i o n of 

our o f f e r . 

Q. And d i d I j u s t hear you say t h a t I d i d n ' t g i v e 

you a copy of t h i s ? I s t h a t correct? 

A. Yeah, I t h i n k — You know, you had t h a t 

attachment on th e r e , and I don't -- I t h i n k I sent i t back 

t o you. I t h i n k I sent i t back t o you. I d i d n ' t keep a 

copy. 

Q. I s i t c o r r e c t t h a t I gave you a copy a f t e r you 

approved i t i n my l i v i n g room, and you — t h i s copy r i g h t 

here was already n o t a r i z e d , and you took i t t o Denver w i t h 
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you? I s t h a t not correct? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e I approved i n the l i v i n g room. I 

sa i d I would look at i t and t r y t o understand what the 

s t o r y was and make sure we were on the r i g h t lease form. 

Q. Did you not say, You're d r i v i n g a hard bargain, 

Bob, but we w i l l -- we w i l l go w i t h t h i s ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l saying t h a t . I know I f e l t very 

uneasy bearing a l l the gathering and processing charges and 

t h a t I took i t w i t h me. 

And then you said, Well, send i t back. I f you 

can't do i t , then send i t back. 

So I sent the whole t h i n g back. So t o me i t 

wasn't an agreement, and I was s t i l l g e t t i n g — That's why 

I sent t h i s June — or t h i s August 6th l e t t e r c l a r i f y i n g 

our p o s i t i o n and our o f f e r , what we could and could not do. 

Q. Did you send me another lease on October 1st, 

a f t e r we had t a l k e d on the phone about gross proceeds? 

A. I sent you a l e t t e r of September 19th, and I 

included two lease options, one-eighth r o y a l t y lease, using 

a gross-proceeds lease language, and a o n e - f i f t h r o y a l t y 

i n t e r e s t lease using a net proceeds lease language. And I 

b e l i e v e those leases were dated October 1st. And t h a t i s 

E x h i b i t Number 21. 

Q. I s there a case i n San Juan County against you 

f o r t h i s same manipulation, a cou r t case? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

41 

A. I don't believe so. I don't know what you're 

t a l k i n g about. 

Q. And you're saying t h a t you d i d not approve t h a t 

lease i n my l i v i n g room? 

A. I d i d n ' t t h i n k I d i d . I t o l d — 

Q. Well, t h i s i s not — 

A. -- I had t o look a t i t and t a l k about i t and t a l k 

t o my landman and see — t r y t o get s t r a i g h t on gross 

versus net and then look a t how much i t ' s going t o cost us, 

and t h a t ' s when I sent back the August 6th l e t t e r back 

c l a r i f y i n g our o f f e r and what our p o s i t i o n was. 

Q. This i s not, I d i d n ' t t h i n k . This i s the t r u t h . 

MR. KELLAHIN: He's arguing w i t h the witness. I f 

he wants t o t e s t i f y t o h i s versi o n h e ' l l have a chance. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s u s t a i n t h a t o b j e c t i o n . 

Any f u r t h e r questions, Mr. Mosley? I sustained 

the o b j e c t i o n t o the l a s t one. 

MR. MOSLEY: Okay, now can I t e l l — How do I 

t e l l my side of i t ? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, a f t e r both of Mr. 

K e l l a h i n ' s witnesses have been examined by him and by you 

and by me, then y o u ' l l have an o p p o r t u n i t y t o t e l l your 

s i d e , and then Mr. K e l l a h i n can ask you questions, and I 

can. Okay? 

MR. MOSLEY: Okay. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I have no r e d i r e c t . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Okay. I'm sor r y , what i s your name? 

A. J e r r y McHugh. 

Q. Mr. McHugh, I should remember t h a t . 

This i s a Mesaverde and Dakota prospect onl y ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And what i s the v e r t i c a l l i m i t s t h a t you're 

asking us t o pool? 

A. From the — probably the base of the PC t o the 

base of the Dakota. We plan t o complete i n the Mesaverde 

and the Dakota — 

Q. Yeah, but you're not — 

A. — formations. 

Q. — you're not lo o k i n g a t the F r u i t l a n d or the PC 

on t h i s ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . There's an e x i s t i n g F r u i t l a n d 

w e l l on the p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

Q. I s t h a t the Fannie Ward? 

A. No, i t ' s the Scott Number 1. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I t ' s not i n d i c a t e d on the map. 

Q. Where i s t h i s located i n reference t o --

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

43 

A. We're j u s t west of Aztec about two and a h a l f 

m i l e s . 

Q. I s i t close t o the Animas River? 

A. We're probably a h a l f m i l e from the Animas. 

Q. I t h i n k we've — Okay, yeah, and you want a 

s o u t h - h a l f spacing u n i t here? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Let's see, now, hang on a second. This i s i n 

Basin-Dakota? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And do you know the name of the pool i n the 

Mesaverde? 

A. I t ' s the Blanco-Mesaverde. 

Q. Blanco-Mesaverde. And those are both spaced on 

32 0, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Yeah, the two w e l l s per u n i t , 320, okay. 

A. A c t u a l l y i t ' s four w e l l s per — 

Q. Four w e l l s . 

A. I t h i n k i t ' s been downsized. 

Q. Okay, very good, I stand c o r r e c t e d . 

Now, your overhead r a t e was $4905 f o r d r i l l i n g , 

and d i d you say $890 f o r producing? 

A. $890, c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you say t h a t ' s the survey standard up there? 
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A. Well, I t h i n k i n our process we checked through 

COPAS and then d i d a survey as t o what we were charging our 

cu r r e n t w e l l s , and because t h i s was a commingled w e l l , 

t here's going t o be a l i t t l e b i t more work t o do as f a r as 

d i v v y i n g up the i n t e r e s t s and working on the l o c a t i o n s . I 

mean, j u s t o f f i c e work, e s s e n t i a l l y . 

Q. The producing r a t e seems a b i t higher than what 

we've normally encountered. The d r i l l i n g r a t e i s w e l l i n 

l i n e , maybe a l i t t l e low, but the producing r a t e seems a 

l i t t l e h i gh. That's the reason I asked the question. 

A. Okay. We thought i t was p r e t t y much i n l i n e 

since i t was a commingled w e l l . 

Q. Well, t h a t may be the d i f f e r e n c e . 

And you understand t h a t you w i l l have t o apply 

se p a r a t e l y f o r the downhole commingling — 

A. Yes, s i r --

Q. — under the — 

A. — I r e a l i z e t h a t . 

Q. — OCD Rules? 

Now, I'm not sure I got down c o r r e c t l y the 

var i o u s terms t h a t you mentioned t h a t you had made w i t h 

v a r i o u s people. You said, one, t h a t you d i d a f i v e - y e a r 

lease: a t $150 per acre w i t h a one-eighth r o y a l t y ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t , t h a t ' s w i t h Mr. W i l l i a m s , Mrs. 
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Norwood, and I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a l s o t h e same r a t e w i t h Mr. 

Good. 

Q. And I t h o u g h t you s a i d i t was $120 p e r a c r e w i t h 

him. D i d I mis- --

A. Mr. Good was about $120. Ms. Norwood, I t h i n k , 

was $30. And Mr. W i l l i a m s ' E s t a t e was, I t h i n k , $150. 

Q. Okay. They were a l l o n e - e i g h t h r o y a l t y ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And tho s e are a l l f i v e - y e a r leases? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s a l l I 

have. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, you may c a l l y o u r 

n e x t w i t n e s s . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Johnson's e x h i b i t s a r e f o u n d 

b e h i n d -- i n t h e e x h i b i t book, b e h i n d E x h i b i t Tab Number 6, 

and he's g o i n g t o d i s c u s s E x h i b i t s 29, 3 0 and 3 1 . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, you may proceed. 

GARY J. JOHNSON, 

t h e w i t n e s s h e r e i n , a f t e r h a v i n g been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s o a t h , was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Johnson, f o r t h e r e c o r d , s i r , p l e a s e s t a t e 
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your name and occupation. 

A. Gary J. Johnson. I l i v e i n Sedalia, Colorado, 

and I'm a c o n s u l t i n g petroleum engineer. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions have you t e s t i f i e d before the 

D i v i s i o n as an expert i n petroleum engineering? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. You were p a r t of the Gavilan hearing a t one time, 

were you not? 

A. Yes. Yes, I spent a l o t of time here. 

Q. Have you been asked by Mr. McHugh t o make a study 

of the Mesaverde and the Dakota i n t h i s area, i n terms of 

reaching your own expert opinion about the a p p r o p r i a t e r i s k 

f a c t o r p enalty t o apply i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Based upon t h a t study do you have an opinion? 

A. Yes, I do. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Johnson as an expert 

witness. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) What i s your opinion? 

A. My opinion i s t h a t there are r i s k s associated 

w i t h t h i s w e l l and t h a t the cost plus 200 percent i s an 

app r o p r i a t e r i s k f a c t o r . 
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Q. Let's look t o see how you support t h a t 

conclusion. 

A. Okay. F i r s t t h i n g I d i d was t o look a t the area 

t h a t ' s been shown t o you on the map, as f a r as p r o d u c t i o n 

from both the Mesaverde and the Dakota, and I drew what I 

c a l l p r o d u c t i o n contour maps t h a t are E x h i b i t s 29 and 30. 

E x h i b i t 2 9 i s a contour map based on the 

cumulative production from w e l l s t h a t are completed i n the 

Dakota, and E x h i b i t 3 0 i s a contour map based on the 

cumulative production on w e l l s from the Mesaverde. 

A f t e r l o o k i n g at those, what i t i n d i c a t e d t o me 

— I ' l l t a l k about the Mesaverde i n 30 f i r s t . As you can 

see, there's no Mesaverde completions t o the southwest area 

i n t h i s map. 

And also as you can see on t h a t , the l a r g e r 

cumulatives are t o the north and t o the west, and as you go 

t o the south -- or t o the n o r t h and t o the east. As you go 

t o the south and t o the west there's not much data, or the 

cumulatives are decreasing as you go k i n d of down i n t o t h a t 

p a r t of the f i e l d . So what t h a t e x h i b i t s t o me i s t h a t 

there's a l o t of r i s k i n the Mesaverde o f , number one, 

encountering production and, number two, encountering 

cumulative production t h a t would indeed pay f o r t h i s w e l l . 

I n the Dakota on E x h i b i t 29, there's p r o d u c t i o n 

i n a l l f o u r d i r e c t i o n s from the proposed l o c a t i o n , but what 
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t h i s i l l u s t r a t e s t o me i s t h a t there's a r e a l sweet spot, 

i f you w i l l , here i n the south p a r t of Section 7 and a 

t r e n d t h a t goes east t o west across t h a t area around the 

sweet spot. And then there's more good p r o d u c t i o n t o the 

south. 

But i n the center of the map, i n Sections 17, 18 

and then over i n the next township i n Section 13, the 

cumulative productions here seem t o be somewhat l i m i t e d . 

And my conclusion on t h a t , adding t h a t t o the look a t the 

Mesaverde, i s t h a t there i s some geologic r i s k , and t h e r e 

i s q u i t e a b i t of production r i s k i n v o l v e d w i t h t h i s 

l o c a t i o n . 

I used these cumulatives, then, t o look a t the 

economics of d r i l l i n g a w e l l here, and I used these 

cumulative maps t o come up w i t h what I thought a w e l l out 

here might recover f o r cumulative p r o d u c t i o n . 

Based on t h i s , I b a s i c a l l y s a i d you do have some 

r i s k t h a t one or the other of these formations — probably 

the Mesaverde — may not produce. And so I came up w i t h 

two economic scenarios, and those are attached — 

Q. That's E x h i b i t 31, i s i t not? 

A. Yeah, E x h i b i t 31. And what I d i d t h e r e was used 

a cumulative i n the 700 m i l l i o n area f o r the commingled 

w e l l and then ran a second case based on a 300 m i l l i o n 

cumulative i f indeed the Mesaverde fo r m a t i o n d i d n ' t 
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produce, and ran economics on t h a t . 

And then i n a d d i t i o n t o t h a t , I also looked a t 

the p r i c e assumptions f o r gas and o i l . And based on the 

h i s t o r y t h a t we have i n the San Juan Basin, the p r i c e s t h a t 

we're l o o k i n g a t today are looking p r e t t y good, but t h e r e 

i s some r i s k t h a t they could r e t u r n t o what they've been 

h i s t o r i c a l l y . So i n a d d i t i o n t o the geologic and 

pr o d u c t i o n r i s k , there also i s p r i c e r i s k i n v o l v e d w i t h 

t h i s w e l l . 

I don't know how much d e t a i l you want t o go i n t o 

on the --

Q. Well, l e t ' s give them a sho r t answer. 

A. Yeah, b a s i c a l l y --

Q. Let me ask you t h i s , Mr.. Johnson: I f I'm going 

t o i n v e s t -- what i s i t , $600,000 and change — 

A. Yes — 

Q. — i n the well? 

A. — $604,425. 

Q. For every d o l l a r I put i n i n i t i a l l y , what am I 

going t o get back? 

A. My best-case an a l y s i s of t h i s b a s i c a l l y would 

say, i f p r i c e s stay up and production i s good you're going 

t o get i n the neighborhood of two d o l l a r s back f o r every 

d o l l a r you i n v e s t . 

Q. And i t ' s going t o take me a t l e a s t 14 years t o 
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accomplish a l l th a t ? 

A. Seventeen year w e l l l i f e on the high case, and 

t h a t case has about a two-and-a-half-year payout on i t . 

Q. There w i l l be a period of time i n which I'm going 

t o have t o accept the f a c t t h a t f o r every d o l l a r I get 

back, I may be able t o d i s t r i b u t e only a d o l l a r and a 

penny? 

A. Yes, there are cases t h a t I've run here. On the 

lower reserve case, even w i t h the high p r i c e s , the 

discounted net investment -- discounted net r e t u r n per 

d o l l a r invested i s a c t u a l l y $1.01. 

Q. I n conclusion, then, your a n a l y s i s supports your 

o p i n i o n of the maximum penalty t h a t ' s j u s t i f i e d ? 

A. I be l i e v e i t does f o r me, yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s your recommendation t o the Examiner? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Johnson. 

We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t s 29, 3 0 and 

31. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Any o b j e c t i o n s t o the e x h i b i t s , 

Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: No. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Twenty-nine through 31 are 

admitted. 
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Mr. Mosley, do you have any questions f o r Mr. 

Johnson? 

MR. MOSLEY: No, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, you're obviously not Mr. 

Johnson the mountain climber. 

THE WITNESS: But I do get a l o t of a t t e n t i o n 

when I c a l l on the phone here. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I imagine so. No, I have no 

questions of t h i s witness. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I would, however, l i k e t o 

r e c a l l Mr. McHugh f o r a moment. I f o r g o t t o ask him some 

t h i n g s . 

JEROME P. McHUGH, JR. (Recalled), 

the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. What I f o r g o t t o ask you about, Mr. McHugh, i s 

the D r i s c o l l i n t e r e s t . 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I f I understood you c o r r e c t l y — Well, f i r s t of 

a l l , t h i s D r i s c o l l i n t e r e s t i s f a i r l y l a r g e , r i g h t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Thirty-something percent, of the prospect; i s t h a t 
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c o r r e c t ? 

A. I t ' s about 39. We have a lease t h a t overlaps 

w i t h i t . 

Q. Well, t h a t was what I was going t o ask you about. 

I f I understood you c o r r e c t l y , there's some t i t l e 

c ontroversy or p o t e n t i a l t i t l e controversy i n v o l v e d i n some 

of t h i s i n t e r e s t and t h a t you have some leases t h a t 

c o n f l i c t w i t h what D r i s c o l l may acquire? 

A. Mr. D r i s c o l l ' s i n t e r e s t s we estimated t o be, a t 

most, 39 percent; and at l e a s t , i t could be around 11, 

based on these three leases and t r a c t s i n v o l v e d here. 

Q. Be at most t h i r t y --

A. 39.45. 

Q. 39.45. 

A. And a t l e a s t -- I'm j u s t guesstimating o f f the 

top of my head, around, oh, 11 percent. 

Q. And what i s the source of — Can you giv e me any 

k i n d of idea what the source of the u n c e r t a i n t y about the 

t i t l e i s , as f a r as what Mr. D r i s c o l l --

A. There were — This t r a c t number 4 i n E x h i b i t 5, 

page 3, at the bottom of E x h i b i t 5, page 3, on the Fannie 

Ward lease, there have been four leases taken out. I 

checked back i n production h i s t o r y and saw t h a t t h e r e were 

some gaps i n production, so we're not a hundred percent 

sure t h a t the Fannie Ward lease i s i n e f f e c t , because th e r e 
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were other lease taken out a f t e r --

Q. Right. 

A. -- the Fannie Ward lease was taken, and I t h i n k 

t h a t was — I don't t h i n k I have the documents. I t was 

about nineteen maybe f i f t y - f i v e . There were two or t h r e e 

others t h a t were taken afterwards, d i f f e r e n t zones. And so 

I'm having the standup t i t l e o p i n i o n done t o a s c e r t a i n 

t h a t . 

But we're requesting the e n t i r e — what could be 

as the force-pooled percentage. 

Q. Right. And you own — Do you own the Fannie Ward 

lease? 

A. No, I own --

Q. I mean, does San Juan own the Fannie — 

A. No, I don't own t h a t one. 

Q. But you own a lease t h a t covers --

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. — t h a t i n t e r e s t t h a t ' s j u n i o r t o the Fannie Ward 

lease? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. And the issue, then, I take i t , i s one of lease 

e x p i r a t i o n , b a s i c a l l y , what lease may have been i n f o r c e 

or — 

A. Right, lease e x p i r a t i o n , whether the leases were 

r a t i f i e d or not during the term of the primary lease and 
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what other w e l l s i n the lease might have he l d t h a t lease — 

Q. Now Mr. D r i s c o l l --

A. — are at issue. 

Q. — i s he an unleased mineral owner? 

A. No, he's a --

Q. Or i s he an owner? 

A. — working i n t e r e s t owner. 

Q. So he's an owner of an i n t e r e s t i n one or more 

leases t h a t --

A. Right, he's an i n t e r e s t i n these t h r e e , i n t r a c t 

1, 6 and 4. 

Q. But h i s i n t e r e s t i s a leasehold i n t e r e s t , not — 

A. Correct --

Q. -- mineral i n t e r e s t ? 

A. -- t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And so the issue, then, i s whether the 

leases t h a t the D r i s c o l l Estate owns are the c u r r e n t ones 

t h a t are i n forc e and e f f e c t , or whether the leases t h a t 

San Juan owns — 

A. Right — 

Q. -- are i n cur r e n t — 

A. — r i g h t . 

Q. — forc e and e f f e c t ? Very good. 

And you say you're having a t i t l e o p i n i o n done? 

A. We're having a standup t i t l e o p i n i o n done r i g h t 
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now, j u s t because there i s u n c e r t a i n t y on some of the 

t r a c t s , and j u s t t r y i n g t o a s c e r t a i n what we a c t u a l l y do 

own and make sure we're prudent i n doing i t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, thank you. 

Any f u r t h e r questions from e i t h e r of you? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

MR. MOSLEY: (Shakes head) 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good, you may stand down. 

Anything f u r t h e r , Mr. Kellahin? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very good. 

Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: I would l i k e you t o hear my side of 

i t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

BOBBIE LEE MOSLEY. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn upon 

h i s oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

MR. MOSLEY: As the f i r s t lease says, gross 

proceeds. And the reason I went w i t h t h i s 2 0 percent, I 

had s e t t l e d one w i t h Bayless on some other p r o p e r t i e s w i t h 

a 20-percent lease. 

Over the phone J e r r y agreed on i t . When he sent 

me the lease he changed i t from gross t o net. I put the 

e x h i b i t on i t . He come t o my house, he looked i t over. He 
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s a i d , You sure d r i v e a hard bargain but we're going t o go 

ahead and take i t . 

And he takes the lease — t h i s lease r i g h t here, 

which i s already c e r t i f i e d and eve r y t h i n g — takes i t t o 

Denver w i t h him as f i n a l . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, so t h a t we can make a 

c l e a r record, would you mark t h a t lease, t h a t document t h a t 

you're r e f e r r i n g t o as an e x h i b i t and int r o d u c e i t i n the 

record? We'll allow you t o have a copy made — We'll have 

a copy made f o r the record, and r e t u r n i t t o you. 

MR. MOSLEY: What e x h i b i t do you want? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mosley E x h i b i t 1. Okay, i f 

y o u ' l l show i t t o Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Mosley. 

You would l i k e t o have t h i s up here? 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I would l i k e t o have i t i n the 

record. I t h i n k we need t o r e t u r n the o r i g i n a l t o Mr. 

Mosley, but we need t o have the cou r t r e p o r t e r make a copy, 

and I assume y o u ' l l want the c o u r t r e p o r t e r t o make a copy 

f o r you also. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Please. 

MR. MOSLEY: A f t e r t h a t , I received a l e t t e r 

dated August 6th, where he says the c o u n t e r o f f e r was not 

acceptable. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. 
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MR. MOSLEY: We had --

EXAMINER BROOKS: Hold on a m i n u t e . Mr. 

K e l l a h i n , can you t e l l me i f t h e r e ' s -- I s t h e r e an August 

6 t h l e t t e r i n your book? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm l o o k i n g as we speak. E x h i b i t 

18 . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. I f you would l o o k a t 

E x h i b i t 18, which i s s e v e r a l pages back b e h i n d Tab 5, Mr. 

Mosley, do you have a copy o f Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s book? 

MR. MOSLEY: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h a t t h e l e t t e r you were 

r e f e r r i n g t o --

MR. MOSLEY: Yes, s i r — 

EXAMINER BROOKS: — t h e August 6 t h l e t t e r ? 

MR. MOSLEY: — I ' v e g o t a copy o f i t r i g h t h e r e . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, would you l o o k a t E x h i b i t 

18 and t e l l us i f t h a t ' s a t r u e copy o f t h e l e t t e r t h a t you 

have? 

MR. MOSLEY: That i s a t r u e copy o f t h e l e t t e r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, c o n t i n u e . 

MR. MOSLEY: Then a f t e r t h i s , we t a l k e d on t h e 

phone a g a i n . He s a i d , W e ' l l go ahead and go w i t h t h a t , 

I ' l l j u s t send you a new l e a s e , w h i c h i s d a t e d t h e 1 s t day 

of October, which he a l s o d i d n o t show g r o s s on i t l i k e we 

had d i s c u s s e d . He changed i t t o n e t proceeds. 
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EX/AMINER BROOKS: Okay, would you go, then, i n 

the book t o E x h i b i t Number 21? That should be j u s t a few 

pages back behind 18. 

MR. MOSLEY: I've got E x h i b i t 21, yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, then t h e r e i s a — what 

appears t o be a form of o i l and gas lease appearing on the 

two pages behind E x h i b i t 21. I s t h a t a copy of the one he 

sent you? 

MR. MOSLEY: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, you may continue. 

MR. MOSLEY: At t h a t time I looked a t i t and I 

t o l d him t h a t he had not held up what he had t o l d me, t h a t 

we had decided on a gross proceeds instead of net proceeds. 

And a f t e r t h a t , the n e g o t i a t i o n s p r e t t y w e l l broke down. 

Let me see what I've got. 

Then on the f i r s t day of February he comes back 

w i t h a lease of one-sixth net and then drops the s h u t - i n 

p r i c e t o $25 a year a f t e r he had already agreed t o the $250 

a year. And he does have a l a w s u i t against him i n San Juan 

County. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o o b j e c t unless he's 

got documentation t o e s t a b l i s h t h a t . 

MR. MOSLEY: I can send i t t o you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Well, w e ' l l l e t him t e s t i f y t o 

i t , f o r whatever e v i d e n t i a r y value, i t has. So o v e r r u l e the 
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o b j e c t i o n . 

Go ahead. 

MR. MOSLEY: On the same deal where he's t o l d 

someone t h a t he would do c e r t a i n t h i n g s and then changes i t 

i n the lease. And I can send you the docket number or 

whatever you want on i t , i f you want me t o . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, w e l l , I a c t u a l l y t h i n k 

i t ' s — what may have happened i n some other case i s 

b a s i c a l l y i r r e l e v a n t , so I don't i t w i l l be necessary t o 

supplement the record on t h a t , but we w i l l l e t your 

testimony stand. 

Anything f u r t h e r , Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: But some of the t h i n g s t h a t he 

t e s t i f i e d t o i s not c o r r e c t i n the way t h a t we t a l k e d about 

s t u f f . He very — very much misrepresented h i m s e l f today. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: I s t h a t a l l ? Are you through? 

MR. MOSLEY: I guess t h a t ' s . . . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Very v / e l l . 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Brooks. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Mosley, would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 13 i n Mr. 

McHugh's e x h i b i t book f o r me? I t ' s r i g h t behind E x h i b i t 

Tab 5. We pi c k up w i t h E x h i b i t 13. 
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A. Okay. 

Q. There's a spreadsheet here. I t has your name as 

the t h i r d one down. The other Mosleys on t h i s l i s t , are 

they r e l a t e d t o you? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. I n what way, s i r ? 

A. S i b l i n g s . 

Q. To the best of your knowledge, has Mr. McHugh 

c o r r e c t l y i d e n t i f i e d the percentage of mineral i n t e r e s t 

t h a t your f a m i l y owns? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. You have no disagreement t h a t he's a t l e a s t got 

t h a t number r i g h t ? 

A. That's — 

Q. That's your understanding of what you b e l i e v e you 

own? 

A. — my understanding, t h a t i t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f y o u ' l l t u r n past t h a t and come t o Mr. McHugh1s 

E x h i b i t 15, t h i s i s the cover l e t t e r t h a t i n c l u d e d the 

lease t h a t you signed and j u s t handed t o Examiner Brooks? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I s there a lease associated w i t h t h i s 

l e t t e r ? 

A. No, s i r , I do not have a lease associated w i t h 

t h i s l e t t e r . 
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Q. When you t u r n the page, E x h i b i t 16, there's a 

l e t t e r of the same date t o Mary Mosley. She's your s i s t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Attached t o t h a t l e t t e r i s a check made out t o 

Mary Mosley and a proposed lease dated J u l y 1st of l a s t 

year. Do you see that ? 

MR. McHUGH: E x h i b i t 16. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Sixteen. Do you see on the 

cover l e t t e r and on the check and on the lease t h a t someone 

has w r i t t e n "No Sale", "No Sale", "Void", "No Sale", 

"Void"? 

A. I see t h a t she d i d t h a t . 

Q. Did you i n s t r u c t her t o do t h a t ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. Did a l l the r e s t of your s i b l i n g s r e t u r n leases 

t o Mr. McHugh i n t h i s manner? 

A. I am not aware of how they r e t u r n e d them. 

Q. Do you t a l k t o them? 

A. Yes, I t a l k t o them. I don't know how they 

r e t u r n e d t h e i r leases. 

Q. The lease you handed Mr. Brooks t h a t you signed 

was t r a n s m i t t e d t o you by which t r a n s m i t t a l l e t t e r f o r Mr. 

McHugh? What l e t t e r goes w i t h t h a t lease? 

A. I t ' s — 
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Q. Okay, I t h i n k you're l o o k i n g a t E x h i b i t 17. Let 

me see i f I can help us get on the same page. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f y o u ' l l look at Mr. McHugh's E x h i b i t 17, i t ' s 

the J u l y 2 4th l e t t e r . I f you look past t h a t , t here's a 

copy of a check, followed by a lease dated August 1st of 

l a s t year? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s the one I j u s t handed — 

Q. — Mr. Brooks? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And when you look at the lease form i t s e l f , i t 

says o n e - f i f t h net proceeds, does i t not? 

A. Yes, i t does, yeah. That's where the discrepancy 

i s . 

Q. Well, t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

A. Because over the phone he sai d gross. He t o l d me 

a number of times. 

I s a i d , That's what we're going f o r , i s gross, 

w i t h o u t post-production cost. 

Q. Did you ever sign and deposit the check? 

A. Yes, because i t said t h i s — He took the lease 

from my house i n agreement t h a t i t was a done de a l . 

Q. There's no addendum attached t o t h i s lease, i s 

t h e r e , i n the e x h i b i t book? 

A. What? 
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Q. Your addendum t h a t you stapled onto the lease i n 

August, I don't have t h a t here. 

A. Well, t h a t ' s not -- I've got i t r i g h t here i f you 

want t o look at i t . 

Q. No, i t ' s attached t o the one you gave Mr. Brooks, 

d i d you not? 

A. And here's a copy of i t , r i g h t here. 

Q. I n your conversation w i t h Mr. McHugh on August 

19th, d i d you t e l l Mr. McHugh t h a t you had another company 

t h a t would take your deal at a f i f t h — 

A. No, s i r , I d i d not. 

Q. You d i d not say t h a t t o him? 

A. I sa i d , I've got another company i n t e r e s t e d , I 

w i l l not even t a l k t o them u n t i l we decide whether we're 

going t o close the deal or not. 

Q. Who was the company you had i n mind? 

A. I don't have t o d i s c l o s e t h a t . 

Q. I s t h a t the Bayless group t h a t you were t a l k i n g 

about e a r l i e r ? 

A. I don't have t o d i s c l o s e t h a t because o f . . . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't have any f u r t h e r 

questions, thank you. 

THE WITNESS: I've got the l e t t e r s a t the house, 

i f I have t o prove — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm done, thank you. 
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EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. Mr. Mosley, i f I understand your testimony 

c o r r e c t l y you handed t h i s lease which has been marked as 

E x h i b i t Number 1 t o Mr. McHugh when he was a t your house? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t would have been i n approximately August 

of 2002? 

A. Just August 2nd or 3rd, somewhere i n t h e r e . 

Q. Now, at the time you handed i t t o Mr. McHugh, was 

i t signed as i t i s today, by you? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t was signed. 

Q. Was i t acknowledged by -- or n o t a r i z e d — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — by — 

A. I t was e x a c t l y the way you've got i t i n your 

Q. -- R.G. Hunnicutt, as i t i s today? 

A. Yes, s i r , j u s t the way you've got i t . 

Q. And d i d i t have the second page attached as — 

A. And he — 

hand? 

Q. — E x h i b i t "A", attached — 

A. Yes, s i r , and he sat down and read i t and agreed 

on i t , r i g h t t here i n my l i v i n g room. 

Q. And he took Mosley E x h i b i t 1 w i t h him — 
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A. He took — 

Q. — when he l e f t ? 

A. -- t h a t one t h a t you've got i n your hand, took i t 

w i t h him. 

Q. And he subsequently ret u r n e d i t t o you? 

A. A f t e r I got the August 6th l e t t e r I asked him t o 

r e t u r n i t . 

Q. Okay, he d i d not r e t u r n i t w i t h the August 6th 

l e t t e r ? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. He returned i t t o you at a l a t e r date by mail? 

A. By m a i l , he returned i t by i t s e l f . 

Q. Was there a l e t t e r t h a t came w i t h t h a t ? 

A. No, he j u s t sent i t — j u s t i n one of h i s 

envelopes, sent i t back t o me. 

Q. Very good. 

A. There was nothing attached t o i t , no l e t t e r w i t h 

i t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have one fol l o w - u p q u e s t i o n . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Go ahead. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Mosley, do you have a signed copy of the 

addendum t h a t ' s signed by Mr. McHugh? Did he execute a 
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copy of the addendum t h a t you've put on t h a t lease? 

A. No, he j u s t said t h a t --

Q. I don't care what he s a i d ; d i d he si g n i t ? 

A. No, he hasn't signed i t y e t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: One more. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER BROOKS: 

Q. This e x h i b i t , Mosley E x h i b i t 1, i s signed only by 

you, c o r r e c t , Mr. Mosley? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Not by anyone else. 

Now, d i d any of the other members of your f a m i l y 

f o r whom you had said you were n e g o t i a t i n g , d i d any of them 

sig n leases l i k e t h i s ? 

A. No, because i t says i n there i f one of us signs, 

t h a t i t goes f o r a l l of us, i n one of the leases. 

Q. Where does i t say that? 

Q. Well, I have i t i n the record, I can read i t , 

so... Make a note so I ' l l remember t o . 

A. But he was going t o go ahead and send them t h e i r 

leases. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Very good. 

THE WITNESS: To get them signed. 
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EXAMINER BROOKS: Anything f u r t h e r , Mr. Ke l l a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Just a sh o r t statement, Mr. 

Brooks. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, i s the r e anything f u r t h e r 

you wanted t o say, Mr. Mosley? Have you had your say? 

MR. MOSLEY: Well, i t depends on h i s statement. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Well, w e ' l l g i v e you a 

chance t o respond a f t e r he makes h i s statement. 

Very good, you may make your statement. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Brooks, i t ' s obvious t h a t 

t h e r e i s no meeting of the minds here, there's a d i f f e r e n c e 

of agreement over the lease form. 

But I t h i n k what decides t h i s f o r me i s t o look 

a t Mr. T u l l y ' s l e t t e r of January of t h i s year. Mr. T u l l y 

i s -- That's E x h i b i t 27. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay. Go ahead. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I f Mr. T u l l y i s c l a i m i n g t h e r e i s 

a lease executed i n e f f e c t by h i s c l i e n t t h a t was done 

months e a r l i e r , why i n the world i s Mr. T u l l y proposing 

lease terms or co n t i n u i n g t o neg o t i a t e over these p r i c e s ? 

I t simply confirms t o me --

MR. MOSLEY: What e x h i b i t i s t h a t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: E x h i b i t 27. 

I t represents t o me t h a t the p a r t i e s have not 

reached an agreement. And I t h i n k t h a t does i t f o r me, t o 
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say i f Mr. T u l l y , who's a l i t i g a t o r and an experienced 

lawyer i n Farmington, i s going t o represent Mr. Mosley, 

he's going t o come back t o the same lease you have t h e r e 

and say, Mr. McHugh, you're done, t h i s i s the deal , you've 

committed t o i t , we have an enforceable agreement. 

He does j u s t the opposite, he continues t o 

ne g o t i a t e and proposes d i f f e r e n t terms. So i t confirms 

from h i s own lawyer t h a t there i s no c o n t r a c t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Mr. Mosley? 

MR. MOSLEY: Well, there wasn't when he sent i t 

back a f t e r he agreed on i t , so the r e wasn't a c o n t r a c t . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: So you're contending t h a t t h e r e 

i s a l e g a l l y b i n d i n g c o n t r a c t on the basis of t h i s lease as 

of now? 

MR. MOSLEY: No, s i r , not when he sent i t back, 

the r e i s n ' t . 

But when he l e f t my house t o go t o Denver i t was 

a b i n d i n g c o n t r a c t , because he t o l d me — He shook my hand 

and s a i d , We'll go ahead and go w i t h t h i s . 

EXAMINER BROOKS: But i t ' s not your c o n t e n t i o n 

t h a t t h e r e i s a v a l i d , b i n d i n g c o n t r a c t i n existence as we 

speak? 

MR. MOSLEY: No, because he sent i t back t o me. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Okay, very good. 

I f there's nothing f u r t h e r , then Case Number 
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12,992 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you. 

EXAMINER BROOKS: Thank you. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

12:30 p.m.) 

* * * 

s= 'r> that the foresoin--.: ;? 

,, Exo. m I n« r 
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